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SHORTER NOTICE

SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
OF ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2021 AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT TECH PARK ONE, TOWER ‘E', NEXT TO DON BOSCO SCHOOL, OFF
AIRPORT ROAD, YERWADA, PUNE — 411006 AT 12.15 P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Mr. Urvish Jayantilal Rambhia (DIN: 09264582) as a Director:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 161 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and the rules made there under, as amended from time to time, Mr. Urvish
Jayantilal Rambhia (DIN: 09264582), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by
the Board of Directors w.e.f. 21st September, 2021 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General meeting but who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company, whose period of office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

3. Exemption To Auditors To Attend Annual General Meeting:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an
-Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the Provisions of section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions if any Consent of the Company be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors
to consider giving exemption to the auditors of the Company to attend the general meetings”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Atul Chordia
Director
DIN: 00054998

Date: 29/11/2021
Place: PUNE
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The
instrument for appointing Proxy shouid be returned to the Registered Office of the Company before
the time for holding the Meeting.

2. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution/Authority
Letter authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

3. Members, Proxies and Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the meeting, the
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith, duly completed and signed, mentioning therein details of their
DP ID and Client ID / Folio No as may be applicable.

4. Members are requested to intimate any change in their postal address or email address to the
Company in writing.

5. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying statements or as may require
under the Companies Act, 2013 are open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

6. Members desiring any information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the Company
at an early date so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the Meeting.

7. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Twentieth AGM is annexed.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

W
Atul Chordia

Director
DIN: 00054998

Date: 29/11/2021
. Place: PUNE
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Route map to AGM Venue

Venue: Tech Park One, Tower 'E', S. N. 191A/2A/2, Next to Don Bosco School, Off Airport Road,
Yerwada, Pune 411 006
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the
Notice:

ITEM NO. 2:

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Urvish Jayantilal Rambhia (DIN:
09264582) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from September 21, 2021. In terms
of Section 161 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Urvish Jayantilal Rambhia (DIN: 09264582) will hold
office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual general meeting or the last date, on which the
Annual general meeting should have been held, whichever is earlier.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, except Mr. Urvish Jayantilal
Rambhia (DIN: 09264582), is concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 3 for approval of the Members of
the Company

ITEM NO. 3:

As Per Section 146 of the Companies Act 2013, Consent of the members is required for exempting
the auditors of the Company to attend the General Meetings.

The Board of directors recommend the above resolutions for approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, is concerned or interested
(financially or otherwise) in this Resolution.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 4 for approval of the Members of
the Company
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U45201PN2002PTC143638
Name of the Company : ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Registered Office : Tech Park One, Tower ‘E’, Next To Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune — 411 006
Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail Id
Folio No. / Client Id
DPID

I/We, being the member(s) of ...................... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

Lo NAGME e et s ssn e ne s e
AAreSS: v ettt s s ser e s enen
E-Mail [A: oottt e v e
SIBNATUIE: wvverevre e ctrestrre e str s snrasssnsresneseeneeenenns, OF fRHHNE hiM

2. NAME e srr e arese e nesreeresessees
AAIESS: e s e sessress sessssnesass sessnes
E-mail Id: et
SIBNATULE; wcvveerrerireerirecesesnsnseeresesssssscensssssnsnnennennnnns, OF failing him

3. NAME e srest e sreseaersessbesaes
AArESS: oot se e e st st aebeaaees
E-mail Id: e e e
SIZNATUTE! ot cer e ceee v een e e s e sessaraees

as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twentieth Annual
General Meeting of the company, to be held on Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at 12.15 P.M. at Tech Park
One, Tower ‘E’, Next to Don Bosco School, Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune — 411006 and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resolution No.:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021, TOGETHER WITH THE REPORT OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2.APPOINTMENT OF MR. URVISH JAYANTILAL RAMBHIA (DIN: 09264582) AS A DIRECTOR
3.EXEMPTION TO AUDITORS TO ATTEND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Signed this ......... day of c...ccvvrvviecreerrnnnenn, 2021 Affix
Revenue
Signature of Shareholder ........cccuvercinervninannnaee Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder .....ceeereveeerrrnenrenranns
Note:

a) Revenue Stamp to be affixed on this form.
b) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered

Office of the Company, before the commencement of the Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
1CC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: Tech Park One, Tower ‘E’, Next To Don Bosco Schooi, Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune —
411 006

Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the place of the meeting:

Folio No. Client ID No.

Name of the Shareholder/Proxy

Address

No. of shares held

| hereby record my presence at the Twentieth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at 12.15 P.M. at Tech Park One, Tower ‘E’, Next to Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune —411006.
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ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd. Office: Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Next to Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune 411006
CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting before you the Twentieth Annual Report of the Company
together with the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 315 March
2021.

1. Financial Results:

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year figures is given

hereunder:
(Figures in Rs. lacs)

Revenue from Operations 37,453
Other Income 828
Less: Operating Expenses 17,964
Profit before finance cost, depreciation, 20,317
amortization and tax (‘PBITDA’)

Less:

Finance Cost 4,970
Depreciation 6,559
Profit/ (loss) before tax 8,787
Less : Taxes

Current Tax 1,789
Tax in respect of earlier years (18)
Deferred Tax (189)
Profit/ Loss for the year 7,205
Balance as per the last financial statements 19,167
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (expenses) 17
Less: Utilised for Dividend 20,000
Less: Tax on Dividend 4,111
Less: Tax on Buy back of shares 876
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 1,402

Note: The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) with effect from 1 April 2017,
pursuant to the notification of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

2. THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

The Company recorded operating revenues of Rs. 18,336 lacs in FY 2020-21 as against Rs. 37,453 lacs in FY
2019-20 and Net operating Income or PBITDA recorded as Rs. 11,468 lacs in FY 2020-21 as against Rs.
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20,317 lacs in FY 2019-20. Net profit after tax for FY 2020-21 stood at Rs. 565 lacs as against Rs. 7,205 lacs
in FY 2019-20

As can be seen above, operating revenue and net operating income has reduced by 51% and 44%
respectively on account of impact of COVID in FY 2020-21

The income from leasing activity stood at Rs. 14,572 lacs in FY 2020-21 as compared to Rs. 18,018 lacs in
FY 2019-20

The income generated through operation of JW Marriott is Rs. 3,608 lacs in FY 2020-21 as compared to
Rs.19,050 lacs in FY 2019-20

Further, the income from windmill stood at Rs.156 lacs in FY 2020-21 as compared to Rs.385 lacs in FY
2019-20.

COVID Impact:

COVID is a global pandemic and this event has significantly affected the socio-economic and business
activities worldwide. The Company has taken cognizance of all the possible impacts of the known events
arising from COVID pandemic, and based on its review, there is no significant impact on its current year
financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID is a continuous process, given the
uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The impact of global health pandemic might be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Market Highlights:

Pune is the second largest software and technology hub of India and houses companies such as Wipro,
Infosys, IBM, Cognizant, Tata Consultancy Services. Pune has also an established industrial, defense and
automobile hub and houses companies such as Tata Motors, Volkswagen, Mercedes Benz, GE India etc.

A quick snapshot of the demand trends of Pune Office Space is as below:

Gross Office Absorption in million sq ft
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Source: JLLREIS Q4’21
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As can be evidenced above, Pune has witnessed a healthy market recovery in 2021 primarily in last
quarter and the momentum is likely to continue in 2022 with positive occupier sentiments, receding
impact of COVID, lifting of restrictions by local authorities and increasing attractiveness of Pune as a tech
offshoring destination.

CBD Micro Market:
Being located in Senapati Bapat Road, your company operated within the Central Business District (CBD)

micro market viz., Pune Cantt, Bund Garden Road, Shivaji Nagar, Koregaon Park, Wakdewadi & Station
Road which continues to remain one of the preferred locations by major occupants in Pune.

‘Rent (Rs. psf) 82.4 839 82.3
Vacancy (%) 4.5% 4.7% 4.5%
Stock (mn sf) 6.8 6.8 6.8

Source: JLL REIS, Q4'21

As can be seen above, there is limited addition to stock since FY 2018-19 in the micro-market. The muted
supply has led to fall in vacancy levels. from 4.7% in FY 2019-20 to 4.5% in FY 2020-21.

Future Outlook:

Pune is expected to deliver average annual supply of 4.2mn sf Grade A assets upto 2023. Average
historical absorption since 2014 has been 3.7mn sf per year which is broadly in-line with expected supply
indicating continued strong fundamentals for Pune office market.

3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of Business of the Company.

4. DIVIDEND:

In order to conserve the profits, Directors do not propose to declare any dividend for the financial year
ended 31st March 2021. The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as
there was no dividend declared and paid in the previous year.

5. AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED TO ANY RESERVES:

The movement in the major reserves of the Company for Financial year 2020-21 and the previous year
are as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Capital Redemption Reserve 363.03 363.03
Securities Premium Account 15,102.73 15,102.73
Surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss 2,001.59 1,402.22
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6. DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 as

amended.

7. SHARE CAPITAL:

There has been no change in the share capital of the company on account of buy-back of securities,
issuance of sweat equity or bonus shares. During the year under review, the Company has not allotted any
shares by way of Right Issue or on Private Placement Basis. Further, the Company has not provided any
Stock Option Scheme to the employees

8. POLICIES:
a) WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM:

Your Company has been following the principles and practices of good Corporate Governance and has
ensured, as far as possible, due compliance to various provisions of the applicable laws.

The Board of Directors of your Company place strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and
integrity and have set for the Company broad objectives of continuously enhancing the customers
satisfaction and shareholders’ value.

In keeping with this focus, your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism duly framed in consonance
with section 177(9) the Companies Act, 2013 to report genuine concerns or grievances.

b) ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY:

The Company has duly adopted an Anti-Corruption Policy to ensure that business of the Company are
conducted with highest legal and ethical standards and that all employees and other persons acting on
behalf of the Company uphold this commitment.

c) RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company is faced with risks of different types, all of which need different approaches for mitigation
and hence the policy on Risk Management has been formulated and adopted as required under the
provisions of Section 134 (3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy specifies the risk management
approach of the Company and includes periodic review of such risks, including documentation, mitigating
controls and reporting mechanism for such risks.

d) SEXUAL HARRASMENT POLICY:

The Company has adopted a policy on Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace pursuant to the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this

policy.
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Further the Board states that there were no cases or complaints filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

e) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY (CSR POLICY):
The Company has adopted a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility.

Since our Company’s inception, it has been our endeavor to work towards enriching the life of people in
need and make a meaningful contribution to the society. It is a sincere devotion that stems out of genuine
concern and drive to provide comprehensive and sustainable social development to rural India. The
Company is committed to sustainable and inclusive development of the community’s social capital
through active engagement. The CSR programme covers key human development verticals such as
education, health and housing, besides various social empowerment measures. The Annual Report on CSR
is annexed herewith as Annexure —II.

9. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There were no instances during the year under review attracting the provisions of Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

10. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The information under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as mentioned below:

A) Conservation of Energy:

(i) Energy Conservation Measures taken:

The Company continued its focus on energy efficiency and reducing operational costs. Further, the
company has taken following initiatives for the conservation of energy.

Operation of Windmills as non-conventional energy source for generation of electricity.
Common area lightings are controlled by timers.

Use of energy efficient lamps in the premises and parking areas.

Use of best quality wires, cables, switches and low self-power loss breakers.

Selection of high efficiency transformers, DG sets and other equipment’s, etc.

A S

(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

Your company has been operating Windmills as non-conventional renewable energy source for generation
& utilization of electricity for captive consumption.

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s:

During the financial year 2020-21, your Company has not made any capital investment on energy
conservation equipment.
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B) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings are as under:

Rooms, restaurant, banquet and other services

14,764,774

746,003,423

Total

14,764,774

746,003,423

Foreign Exchange Expenditures are as under:

Capital Goods 3,791,163 28,333,070
Professional fees 288,702 210,007
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies 126,876 4,574,256
Staff Welfare - 3,095,529
Advertising and marketing expenses - 42,265,260
Repairs and maintenance - 290,467
Rent, rates & taxes - 4,797,387
Royalty fees (3,167,836) 33,532,881
Management fees 11,586,488 50,192,894
Miscellaneous expenses 10,195,700 1,576,670

Total 22,821,093 168,868,421

C) Technology Absorption:

(i) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption:

The Company has always focused on upgraded technology in order to deliver quality services to its
customers and maintenance of its projects to sustain the life of assets at the minimum possible costs.

(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g., product improvement, cost reduction, product
development, import substitution, etc.:

The Company with its landmark design, robust infrastructure and support services, made its project viz.
ICC Trade Tower, ICC Tech Park, ICC Pavillion Office, Hotel JW Marriott and Pavillion Mall as an ideal
destination for its clients and customers.

(iii) During the year under review, the Company has not imported any technology related equipment.
(iv) No specific department for Research and Development was operated during the year under review.
However, efforts are always made for the improvements in its process controls, time management

and unwanted wastages during construction and operation. Expenditures on such activities cannot be
identified separately.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review Mr. Siddhartha Gupta was resigned from the directorship of the company
w.e.f 17" December 2020. Further Mr. Siddharth Nawal was appointed as an additional director on the
Board of Directors the Company w.e.f 17" December 2020 and confirmed as director in the Annual
General Meeting held on 31st December 2020.
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12. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD:

Details of Board Meetings held during the financial year 2020-21 as required u/s 134(3) (b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are as under:

2 (Two) "2 (Two) 1(One)
28.07.2020 05.10.2020 09.02.2021
28.07.2020 17.12.2020

The intervals between any two meetings were well within the maximum period provided by the MCA
circular 08/2021 dated 03/05/2021.

13. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY:

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this
Report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

14. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate
Company/ies.

15. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

During the year under review, there was no Employee in receipt of remuneration exceeding Rs.8,50,000/-
per month or Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per annum.

16. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Since, the provisions of Section 149 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder
are not applicable to the Company; the appointment of Independent Director/s would not require on the

Board.

17. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

a.In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b.The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period.

c. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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d.The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e.The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

f. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

18. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD - 1 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD
=2

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

19.-AUDITORS:
A) STATUTORY AUDITORS:

At the Annual General Meeting held on 15" September 2017, M/s MSKA & Associates. Chartered
Accountants, with Firm Registration No. 105047W, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022. Accordingly,
the appointment of M/s MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, shall continue to act as Statutory
Auditors of the Company.

B) COST AUDITORS:

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

20. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not
reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its officers or employees, the Audit
Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act, details of which needs to be mentioned in this Report.

21. COMMENTS ON THE QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMER MADE
BY THE AUDITORS:

The Board would like to inform that no qualification or material reservations / observations were observed
and made by the Auditors in their report for the financial year 2020-21.

22. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

In accordance with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the
prescribed format is appended as Annexure 1 to the Board’ Report.

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year under review, all the related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business.
However, as a prudent precaution, the Board of Directors has approved all the related party transactions
for FY 2020-21.
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There were no material transactions with related parties during the year under review. Accordingly,
particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in Form AOC-2 do not form part of the
report.

24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

Since your Company falls under the category of providing infrastructural facilities mentioned under
schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013, details for providing Particulars of loans, guarantees or
investments would not be applicable.

25. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. There is an appropriate mechanism which monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy
of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures
and policies of the Company.

Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.

26. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Since, the provisions of Section 149 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder
are not applicable to the Company; the appointment of Independent Director/s would not require on the
Board for the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

. 27. COMMITTEES:

A) CSR COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your
Company has constituted the CSR Committee. The Committee comprises of the following Directors.

1 Atul Chordia Director
2 Resham Chordia Director
3 Siddharth Nawal Director

28. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE

FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the Financial Year 2020-21, there was no application made and proceeding initiated /pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational Creditors against.

29. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR:
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During the Financial Year 2020-21, there was no application made and proceeding initiated /pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational Creditors against.

30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors of the Company wish to place on record their appreciation of the dedication,
professionalism and hard work put in by the employees of the company at all levels. Relationships with
regulatory authorities and clients remain excellent. The Directors are grateful for the support extended by
them and look forward to receive their continued support and encouragement. The Directors also wish to
thank the bankers of the Company for their continued support.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

=

Atul Chordia Resham Chordia

Director Director

DIN: 00054998 : DIN: 06652039

Address: S. No. 37/1, Ghorpadi, North Main Road Address: Survey No. 37, North Main
Near A.B.C. Farm, Koregaon Park, Pune 411001 Road, Near ABC Farm, Koregaon Park

Annex, Pune 411001

Date: 30/06/2021
Place: Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Next to Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune — 411006
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ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31* March 2021
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the (Companies Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

U45201PN2002PTC143638

12.02.2002

ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Category: Private company Limited by Shares

Sub-category: Indian Non-government Company Limited by Shares
Tech Park One, Tower ‘E’, Next to Don Bosco School,

Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune - 411006

Email : secretarial@panchshil.com, Phone: 020 — 66473100

No

Kfin Technologies Private Limited
Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
_Serilingampally, Hyderabad 500032

ll. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

an

1 Real estate activities with own or 68 79.47%
leased property

2 Accommodation and Food Service 55 & 56 19.68%
Activities

3 Electric power generation, 35 0.85%
transmission and distribution

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AS ON 315" MARCH 2021:

NOT APPLICABLE
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

i) Category-wise Share Holding:

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

(a) Individual / Nil | 4,99,332 | 4,99,33 | 4.66% NilL{ 4,99,332 | 4,99,33 | 4.66% Nil

HUF 2 2

(b) Central Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Govt.

(c) State Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(d) Bodies Corp. Nil | 48,57,66 | 48,57,66 |45.34% Nil | 48,57,66 | 48,57,66 |45.34% Nil
88 88

(e) Banks/FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(f)  Anyothers Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub Total (A) (1): Nil | 53,57,00 | 53,57,00 {50.00% Nil | 53,57,00 | 53,57,00 |50.00% Nil
0 0 0 0

(2) Foreign

(a) NRis- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Individuals

(b) Other-— Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Individuals

(c) Bodies Corp. Nil | 53,57,00 | 53,57,00 {50.00% Nil | 53,57,00 | 53,57,00 {50.00% Nil
0 0 0 0

(d} Banks/Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(e) Anyothers Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub Total (A) (2): Nil | 53,57,00 | 53,57,00 [50.00% Nil | 53,57,00 | 53,57,00 (50.00% Nil
0 0 0 0

*Total

Shareholding of Nil |1,07,14,00 (1,07,14,001100.00% Nil |1,07,14,00 |1,07,14,001100.00% Nil

Promoter (A) = 0 0 0 0

(A)(1)+(AN2)
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r category

* Since the Company is a Private Limited Company, all shareholders are mentioned under promote

dc
eld at g

A. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds

{b) Banks /FI

(c) Central Govt.

(d) State Govt.(s)

(e) Venture Capital
Funds

(f) Insurance
Companies

(g) Flls

(h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

(i) Others N.A.

(specify)
Sub Total (B){(1):

1. Non-Institutions
(a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas
(b) Individuals

Sub Total (B)(2):

Total Public

Shareholding (B) =

(B)(1)+(B)(2)

B. Shares held by N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. | NA. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) Nil (1,07,14,00 |1,07,14,00100.00% Nil |1,07,14,00 |1,07,14,000100.00%  Nil
Y 0 0
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) .

Shareholdingl of Promoters:

hareholdin

Premsagar Infra 48,57,668 | 45.34% Nil | 48,57,668 | 45.34% Nil
Realty Pvt. Ltd.
BRE Asia ICC 53,57,000 50.00% Nil | 53,57,000 | 50.00% Nil Nil
Holdings Ltd
(Earlier known as
Xander Investment
Holding XVi
Limited)
Mr. Atul i. Chordia 2,62,272 2.45% Nil 2,62,272 2.45% Nil Nil
Mr. Atul 1. Chordia 2,37,060 2.21% Nil 2,37,060 2.21% Nil Nil
-~ HUF

TOTAL 1,07,14,00 | 100.00% Nil | 1,07,14,00 | 100.00% Nil Nil

0 0

iii} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): NIL

AT THE END OF THE YEAR

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and

Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A. N.A.
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AT THE END OF THE YEAR

| NA] N.A.

Personnel

Reason

AT THE END OF THE YEAR

N.A. N.A.

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 4,659,377,132 NIL NIL| 4,659,377,132
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due 273,573,770 NIL NIL 273,573,770
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,932,950,902 NIL NIL| 4,932,950,902
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

e Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL

e Reduction (303,483,538) NIL NIL (303,483,538)
Net Change (303,483,538) NIL NIL (303,483,538)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year

4,385,621,886 NIL NIL| 4,385,621,886

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
ii) Interest due but not paid 243,845,478 NIL NIL 243,845,478
iiil Interest accrued hut not due
Total (i+ii+iii 4,629,467,364 NIL NIL| 4,629,467,364

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
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A) Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and/or Manager:

1. Gross salary N.A. N.A.
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

{c) Profits in lienaf salanc under section

Stock Option N.A. N.A.
Sweat Equity N.A. N.A.
Commission N.A. N.A.
- as % of profit
aothare cnocifu

5 Others, please specify N.A. N.A,
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act Not Applicable

B) Remuneration to Other Directors:

1. Independent Directors N.A. N.A.
* Fee for attending board
committee meetings
¢ Commission
e Ntharc nlaaco cnarcifu
Total N.A. N.A.
3 Other Non-Executive Directors
¢ Fee for attending board
committee meetings Nil Nil
e Commission Nil Nil
¢ Others,- Salary 12,000,000 12,000,000
5 Total 12,000,000 12,000,000
Grand Total 12,000,000 12,000,000
Total Managerial Remuneration 12,000,000 12,000,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A.

C) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:
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_ Key Managerial Personn

Mrs. Meena

Total

Mr. Pritam

Bhopale Kota
Company CFO
Secretary

1. Gross salary N.A. 3.98 Lacs 18.92 Lacs 22.9 Lacs
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3} Income-

2. Stock Option N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Sweat Equity N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Commission N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

- as % of profit
nthaore snacifu

5. Others, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
please specify
Total N.A. 3.98 Lacs 18.92 Lacs  [22.9 Lacs

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of  |Brief Details of Authority  |Appeal made,
the Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT |if any (give Details)
Companies Punishment/ | / COURT]
Act Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding |N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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Compounding |N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A.

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty N.A, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A, N.A. N.A.
Compounding |N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

. | @b\%
Atul Cordia Resham Chordia
Director Director
DIN: 00054998 DIN: 06652039

Address: S. No. 37/1, Ghorpadi, North Main Road
Near A.B.C. Farm, Koregaon Park, Pune 411001

Date: 30/06/2021
Place: Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Next to Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune — 411006
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Form No. AOC-2
(PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (H) OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 134 OF THE ACT AND RULE 8(2) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section {1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at arm’s length basis:
Name of the | Nature of |Duration| Salient Terms of the Date of Amount Date of
Related Party| Contracts / Contracts/ Arrangement | Approval [paid Special
and nature of | Arrangemen / Transactions and Value | by the as advance, Resolution
relationship | Transactions Board if any
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2, Details of material contracts or arrangements or transaction at arm’s length basis:
Name of the Nature of Contracts Salient Terms of the Date of Amount paid
Related Party and | /Arrangements / Contracts/Arrangement / Approval as advance, if
nature of Transactions Transactions and Value by the any
relationship Board
A2Z Online Section 1881(d) of the As per transaction 28t July N.A.
Service Private companies Act, 2013 document. 2020
Limited
P-One Section 1881(d) of the As per transaction 28" July N.A.
Infrastructure companies Act, 2013 document. 2020
Private Limited
EON Hinjewadi Section 1881(a)(d) of As per transaction 281 July N.A.
Infrastructure the companies Act, document. 2020
Private Limited 2013
Panchshil Section 1881(a)(d) of As per transaction 28™ July N.A.
Corporate Park the companies Act, document. 2020
Private Limited 2013
Panchshil Section 1881(d) of the As per transaction 28" july N.A.
Infrastructure companies Act, 2013 document. 2020
Holdings Private
Limited
EON Kharadi Section 1881(d) of the As per transaction 5" October N.A.
Infrastructure companies Act, 2013 document. 2020
Private Limited
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ANNEXURE- [H
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. The Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy :

The CSR Policy of the Company inter alia provides for :
Slum area development and rural development projects;

Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and
measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;

Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement
projects;

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive health
care and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central
Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and
water including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund Set-up by the Central Government for
rejuvenation of river Ganga;

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of
traditional arts and handicrafts;

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, paralympic sports and olympic
sports;

Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central
Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions which
are approved by the Central Government;

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents.

2. The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as on 31% March, 2021:

Sr. | Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
No. CSR Commiittee held CSR Commiittee
during the year attended during
the year
1 | Mr. Atul Chordia Director 2 2
2 | Mr. Vikram Garg Director 2 2

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company:

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)} Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach
the report}).: NA
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5. Details of the amount availabie for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any

Amount available for set-off
from  preceding financial
years {in Rs)

SI. No. Financial Year Amount required to be setoff for

the financial year, if any (in Rs)

NA

6. Average Net Profits of the company as per section 135(5}) :

The average net profit of the Company for the last 3 financial years preceding 31 March, 2021 is
Rs. 781,377,728/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1,56,27,555 /-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
Activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(c)Amount required to be set off for the financial year,if any: NIL

(d)Total CSR obligation for the financial year {7a+7b-7c): Rs.1,56,27,555 /-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial Year. Amount transferred to any fund specified under
(inRs.) Total Amount transferred to Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
Unspent CSR Account as per 135(5).
Date of Name of the Amount. |Date of
Amount.  |transfer. Fund transfer.
1,62,00,000/- - - - - -
(b)Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10 (11)
Sl. |Name |item Local |Location Project| Amoun [Amount |Amount |Mode of |Mode of
No |of the fromthe |area  |ofthe durati |t spent | transferre [Impleme Implementation
Projec|jist of |(Yes/N project. on. allocate |inthe  [d to ntation |Through .
t. tiviti 0). d for current |Unspent |[Direct Implementing
?C IVItIES the financial |csR (Yes/No) Agency
in . :
project |Year (in |Account
Schedule (in Rs.). |Rs.). for the
Vil to nraiect ac
Stat|Distric Name|CSR
e.t. Registrati
on
number.
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(c) Details of CSR amount s

pent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

SI. [Name of |item fromthe list of [lLocal |Location of the Amount Mode of |Mode of

No [the activities in schedule |area |project. spent for  Jimplement |implementation Through
Project VIi to the Act. (Yes/ the project |ationon |implementing agency.

No). (in Rs.). Direct
(Yes/No).

State. District Name. CSR
registration
number.

1. |Promotio | e Promoting Yes |Maharashtr |Pune [1,62,00,000 |Yes Panchshil |CSR0O000596
n of| education, including a /- Foundation |0
Education,| special education
Healthcar and employment
e and Art enhancing vocation

skills especially
among children,
women, elderly and
the differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement
projects.
Eradicating hunger,
poverty and
malnutrition,
promoting health
care including
preventive health
care and sanitation
including
contribution to the
Swach Bharat Kosh
set-up by the
Central Government
for the promotion
of sanitation and
making available
safe drinking water.
Protection of

national heritage,
art and culture
including
restoration of
buildings and sites
of historical
importance and

winrlee nf art cotting
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(d)Amount spent in Administrative Overheads

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

{f)Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

: Not Applicable

: Not Applicable

: Not Applicable

X
SI. Particular Amount (in
No. Rs.)

(0 [Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) | 1,56,27,555 /-
(i) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,62,00,000/-
(iii) |Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 5,72,445/-
(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 0

the previous financial years, if any
(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- 5,72,445/-
(iv)]

9. (a)Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl.  |Preceding Amount Amount spent |Amount transferred to any |Amount
No. [Financial transferred to |inthe fund specified under Schedule {remainin
Year. Unspent CSR reporting Vi as per section 135(6), if g to be
Account under |Financial Year |[any. spent
section 135(6) {(in Rs.). in
{(in Rs.) succeedin
g
financial
years, (in
Rs.)
Amount (in|Date of
Rs). transfer.
- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
TOTAL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for

financial year(s):

ongoing projects of the preceding
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1| (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. |Project [Name of |Financial Project |Total Amount spent|{Cumulativ |Status of
No. |ID. the Year in duration [amount on the project/e amount |the
Project. |which the allocated for |in the spentat |project
project was th e project |reporting theend |complet
{in Rs.). Financial Year |of ed
commenced (in Rs). reporting /Ongoi
Financial ngon
Year, (in |8
Rc )
TOTAL - - - - - - -

10.

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). NA
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of
capital asset
c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary
under whose name such capital asset is registered, their
address etc.
d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or
acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).
11

11.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
Average net profit as per section 135(5).: Not Applicable

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Atul Chordia
Director

DIN: 00054998
Address: S. No. 37/1, Ghorpadi, North Main Road,
Near ABC Farm , Koregaon Park Annex, Pune

411001

Date: 30/06/2021
Place: Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Next to Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune — 411006

Resham Chordia

Director

DIN: 06652039
Address: S. No. 37/1, Ghorpadi, North Main Road,
Near ABC Farm , Koregaon Park Annex, Pune

411001
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Arun M. Deshpande

B.Com., LLB.FC.S.
Company Secretary

Office No. 311 & 314, Mahadkar Chambers,

Karve Road, Kothrud, Pune 411 038.

Tel.: (0) 020 25425896 | Mobi.: 9371011908

o e-mail : csadeshpande@gmail.com

GST Ne: 27AAUPDB00OQ1Z?
g FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT Udyog Aadhar No.: MH26D0143952

(For the period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021)

To,

The Board of Directors

ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Address: Tech Park One Tower 'E', Next To Don Bosco School,
Off Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune -411006 Maharashtra.

I 'have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the ;
adherence to good corporate practices by ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED {hereinafter called “the o
Company”) of which Debentures are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE) under The Securities and '
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Equity
shares of the Company are not listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarlal audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period ended on March 31, 2021, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reparting made hereinafter:

1. 1 have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by ICC Realty (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as given in Annexure | for the
period ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and the Rules made there under;

ii) The Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

iiiy  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment.

v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

2. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the company under the financial report under the
report :

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulalions, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;




¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations 2009;
d} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme & Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
h)
3. We have relied on the representation made by the Company for systems and mechanism formed by
the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.
I'have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
ii) The Debt Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc. as mentioned above.

I further report that:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and only debentures are listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. During the year under review, there was Resignation of Mr.
Siddhartha Gupta w.e.f.17t" December 2020 as a director and Appointment of Mr. Siddharth
Nawal as an Additional Director w.e.f. 17t December 2020, further he was confirmed as director
in the Annual General Meeting held on 31st December 2020 , accordingly all the requisite E
forms were filed within prescribed time period.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days/shorter notices in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

¢) All decisions were taken with consent of Majority.
I further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate

systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Mr. Arun Madhukar Deshpande
Practicing Company Secretary,
Certificate of Practice No-2905
Membership No-5135

UDIN: FO05135C000558688
Place: Pune

Date: 30-06-2021

Enclosed: - ANNEXURE-




ANNEXURE I to Secretarial Audit Report :

List of documents verified:

1.

10.
11.
12.

13.

Mr. Arun Madhukar Deshpande
Practicing Company Secretary,
Certificate of Practice No-2905
Membership No-5135

UDIN: FO05135C000558688

Place: Pune
Date: 30-06-2021

Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors alongwith Attendance Register held during the
financial year under report.

Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the financial year under report.
Statutory Registers viz.

- Register of Directors &KMP and their Shareholding

- Register of Charge{FormNo.CHG-7)

- others

Agenda papers submitted to all the directors/members for the Board Meetings.

Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of section 184
of the Companies Act, 2013.

E-Forms filed by the Company, from time to time, under applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Companies Act, 2013 and attachments thereof during the financial year under
report.

Intimations/documents/reports/returns filed with the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Listing Agreement (for Debt Securities) during the financial year under report.

Documents relating to admission of Debentures to the Depository System of CDSL and NSDL.
Documents relating to listing Approval of Debentures.
Documents relating to issue of Debentures on Private Placement basis.

Notices / Intimations / documents / reports / returns communicated to the Stock Exchanges,
Trustees of the Debenture Trust Deed, Debenture holders and with other authorities pursuant to
Redemption of Debentures of the Company.

Documents relating to compliances of Debentures Trust Deed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of ICC Realty (India) Private Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ICC Realty (India) Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and profit & Loss , changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

Head Office: Floor 3, Enterprise Centre, Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport, Vile Parle (E), Mumbai 400099, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 3358 9800
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We draw attention to Note 39 to the financial statements which states that the management has
made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's ‘operations, financial performance
and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021 and has concluded that there is no impact
which is required to be recognised in the financial statements. Accordingly, no adjustments have

been made to the financial statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial

Statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

(a)

(b)

(c

—

(d)

(e)

(f)

()

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Bala‘nce Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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ifi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of Section

197 of the Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Company as it is a private

Company.

For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants
No. 105047W .

ICAI Firm Registrat
(P

Niti‘@'an
Partner
Membership No. 111700

UDIN: 21111700AAAADE3804

Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

~based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Head Office: Floor 3, Enterprise Centre, Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport, Vile Parle (E), Mumbai 400099, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 3
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registratipn No. 105047W. - -

o

Nitﬂﬁfanohar Jumani
Partner
Membership No.111700

UDIN: 2111 1700AAAADE38b4

Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIAVTE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

(@) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

(b) All the fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) have not been physically verified by the
management during the year bul Lhere is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

ii.  The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stock and the book records.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Acl, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the
Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in
accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under.

vi.  The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the .. .. .
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the —
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vii.

(@)

(b)

(c)

products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added
tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities though there has been a delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and examination of records of the
company, the outstanding dues of Income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues on account of any
dispute, are as follows.

Amc:{t;nt n Period to Forum
Nature of p which Where
Name of Statue Dues | rﬁr;:;cth:r?d amount dispute is Remarks, If Any
Penalty) relates pending
The Company is
preferring an appeal
to Tribunal against
Joint the Order of Joint
Maharashtra Value Value Commissioner | Commissioner of Sales
Added Tax Act - 2002 | Added Tax 2,39,41,224 2011-12 of Sales Tax | Tax (Appeals).
(Appeals)
Amount paid against
the Order is Rs.
86,28,135.
The Company is
preferring an appeal
Maharashtra Value Value é(c))i;fnissioner xgg?;gfg?%z;git
Added Tax Act - 2002 | Added Tax 29,14,477 201415 | Sales Tax %g)f‘g"ssg)a'}g of Sales
' (Appeals) PP ’
Amount paid against
the Order is Rs.
5,62,922.
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Joint Amount paid against
Commissioner | the Order is Rs.
Maharashtra Value Value
43,59,517 2015-16 of Sales Tax 2,29,405.
Added Tax Act - 2002 Added Tax (Appeals)
Joint
Maharashtra Value Value Commissioner
Added Tax Act - 2002 | Added Tax | 36:5%,766 | 201617 | ' @ i
(Appeals)

viii.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institution, bank or debenture holders,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

According to the information and explanations given to us, since the Company is a Private
Company, the provisions of section 197 of the Act will not be applicable. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

S
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Xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 105047W

NitidManohar Jumani
Partner

Membership No. 111700 -
UDIN: 21111700AAAADE3804

Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ICC REALTY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 1CC Realty
(India) Privale Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021, in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevenfion and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial '
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statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control wilh reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or (hat the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as of March 31, 2021, bascd on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal

control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Nitih Manohar Jumani
Partner

Membership No. 111700
UDIN: 21111700AAAADE3804

Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021.




ICC Realty {India) Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021
Amount in lacs

» Non-current assets

Notes As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Property, plant and equipment 4 20,484.51 23,513.58
Cap}tal work-in-progress 4 243.76 328.25
Investment properties 5 36,959.03 39,103.36
Intangible assets 6 1.60 9.77
57,688.90 62,954.96

Financial assets
Loans 7 534.08 480.27
Other financial assets 8 60.56 213.97
Income tax assets (net) 9 1,698.32 801.46
Other non-current assets 10 944.07 521.35
3,237.03 2,017.05

Current assets

Inventories 11 311.49 410.57

Financial assets
Investments 12 1,003.24 1,080.63
Trade receivables 13 1,967.65 2,322.23
Cash and cash equivalents 14A 1,124.83 1,479.88
Other bank balances 148 7,779.83 6,797.82
Loans 7 433,01 320.10
Other financial assets 8 196.16 220.62
Income tax assets (net) 9 25.05 14.93
Other current assets 10 102257 . 957.22
13,863.83 13,604.00
TOTAL 74,789.76 78,576.01

EQUIT
Equity
Equity share capita! 15 1,071.40 1,071.40
Other equity 16 17,467.35 16,867.98
18,538.75 17,939.38
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 41,470.36 45,300.71

Other financial liabilities 18 1,459.32 2,524.11
Deferred revenue 21 203.37 265.96
Provisions 22 126.47 158.03

43,259.52 48,248.81
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 19 110.45 166.23

enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 19 1,870.09 2,308.10

and small enterprises ’

Other financial liabilities 18 9,704.54 8,465.40
Deferred revenue 21 178.73 281.31
Other current fiabilities 20 1,088.31 1,116.17
Provisions 22 39.37 50.61

12,991.49 12,387.82
TOTAL 74,789.76 78,576.01
Summary of significant accounting policies ) 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Mﬁ 4

For MISKA & Associates J
ICAl Firm Registration No.: OFoA7TW

\\

Nitin ngharjumani ‘Atul Chordia Siddharth Nawal Meena Kota

Partner Director Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership no. 111700 - DIN: 00054998 DIN: 07916449

Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021 Date: june 30, 2021




1CC Realty {India) Private Limited ** EREEAE :
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amountin lacs

Notes Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020

income
Revenue from operations 23 18,335.56 37,453.48
Other income 24 684.07 827.80
Total income (1) 19,019.63 38,281.28
Expenses
Cost of sales 25 688.96 2,615.86
Cost of Construction material sold 25 1.45 -
Employee benefits expense 26 1,754.05 3,405.71
Other expenses 27 5,107.55 11,942.82
Total expenses (II} 7,552.01 17,964.39
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 11,467.62 20,316.89
{EBITDA) (1) - (1)
Finance costs 29 5,119.05 4,970.23
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 5,574.09 6,559.23

10,693.14 11,529.46
Profit before tax 774.18 8,787.43
Tax expenses:
Current tax 1,084.73 1,789.30
Deferred tax (920.48) (189.12)
Tax in respect of earlier years 44,96 (17.57)
Total tax expenses 209,21 1,582.61
Profit for the year 565.27 7,204.82
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods :
Re-measurement (losses) / gains on defined benefit plans 34.10 17.19
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to 34,10 17.19
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 599.37 7,222.01
Earnings per equity share
EPS basic 5.28 65.78
EPS diluted 5.28 65.78
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements,
As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICC Realty {India} Private Limited

For MSKA & Associates
ICAl Firm Registration No.:10
Chartered Accountants

‘@‘ ey ai A
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Nitin M%’e Atul Chordia Siddharth Nawal Meena Kota

Partner Director Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership no. 111700 DIN: 00054998 DIN: 07916449

Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021




ICC Realty (Indi4) Private Limite ;
Statement of changes in equity for the Year ended March 31,2021

(All amounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwlse stated)

A. Equity share capilal As at March 31, 2021

No. of Shares Amount
Cquity shares of INR 10 each issued, subseribad and ‘
fully paid-up
Opening Balance 10,714,000 1,071.40
Closing balance 10,714,000 1,071.40

A. Equity share capital As at March 31, 2020

No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and
fully paid-up )
Opening Balance 11,490,000 - 1,149.00
Changes during the year (776,000} {77.60)
Closing balance 10,714,000 1,071.40

B. Other equity As at March 31, 2021

Capital Redemption Reserve Securities Premium Retained earnings Total

Balance as at March 31, 2020 363.03 15,102,73 1,402.22 16,867.98
Profit for the year - - 565.27 565.27
Other comprehensive income - - 34,10 34.10
Total comprehensive income for the year ended - - 599.37 595.37
March 31, 2021

Balance as at March 31, 2021 363.03 15,102,73 2,001.59 17,467.35

B, Other equity As at March 31, 2020
Capital Redemption Reserve Securities Premium - Retained earnings - Total

Balance as at March 31, 2019 285.43 26,797.05 | 19,167.48 46,249.96
Profit for the year - - 7,204.82 7,204.82
Other comprehensive expenses - - 17.19 17.19
Total comprehensive incorne for the year ended - - 7,222.01 7,222,01
March 31, 2020

Transferred to capital redemption reserve 77.60 (77.60) -
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares (11,616.72) (11,616.72)
Less: Utilised for Dividend (20,000.00) {20,000.00)
Less: Tax on Dividend {4,111.00) {4,111.00)
Less: Tax on Buy back of shares {876.28) (876.28)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 363.03 15,102.73 1,402,22 16,867.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
¢

For MSKA & Associates
ICAI Firm Registration No.:
Chartered Accountants ¢J3

Nitit@ﬁohar]uman
Part

Membership no. 111700
Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ICC Realty (India) Private Limit

“ﬁAtul Chordia

Director

DIN: 00054998
Place: Pune

Date: June 30, 2021
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Siddharth Nawal

Director

DIN: 07916449
Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021

Meena Kota
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune
Date: June 30, 2021




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited = - - Thaig it
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
Amount in lacs

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation

Liabilities written back

Profit of sale of fixed assets

Profit on sale of current investment

Fair value gain on current investment

Provision for doubtful receivables and advances

Bad debts written off

Loss on discarded of fixed assets

Provision for doubtful receivable

Debit balance written off

Interest expenses

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :

{Increase) / decrease in loans

(Increase) / decrease in Deferred tax

(Increase)} / decrease in other non current assets

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) / decrease in other current financial assets
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets

Increase / {decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities

Increase / (decrease) in deferred revenue

Increase / (decrease) in p}ovisions

Cash generated / (used) from operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow generated / (used) in operating activities {A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Payments towards purchase of property and capital work in progress

Sale of fixed assets

Purchases of units of mutual funds

Proceeds from sale of mutual funds

Movement in fixed deposits having original maturity of more than 3 months
(Increase) in/ proceeds from maturity of bank deposits more than 3 months
Interest received

Net cash flow generated / {used) in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Buy Back of equity share capital

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Dividend paid

Divident distribution tax paid

Interest paid

Tax on buyback of shares

Net cash flow generated / (used) from financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents include

Balances with banks

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14)

774.48 8,787.44
5,572.76 6,559.23
(0.49) (3.86)
(0.10) (1.97)
(14.78) (111.61)
(5.41) (3.21)
81.85 143,07
51.89 90.63
- 2.13

(51.46)
0.01 82.67
5,119.04 4,970.23
(340.86) (359.42)
11,186.93 20,155.33
(166.74) (114.92)
- 61.24
(462.13) 149.89
116.78 (89.97)
220.84 (541.82)
41.37 (39.33)
144.41 (228.95)
(576.69) (543.71)
(1,064.79) 223.79
105.92 252.92
{9.12) (21.23)
(165.16) 5,19
(8.72) 16.50
0,362.90 19,284.93
{1,116.19) (2,410.05)
8,246.71 16,874.88
(446.77) (1,254.43)
1.53 25.21
(2,449.97) (21,030.18)
2,547.55 22,853.42
(982.01) (3,812.72)
153.41 (48.42)
323.93 315.49
(852.33) {2,951.63)
(11,694.32)
- 40,000.00
(2,820.25) (15,839.43)
- {20,000.00)
- (4,111.00)
(4,929.18) (2,240.73)
- (876.28)
(7,749.43) (14,761.76)
(355.05) (838.51)
1,479.88 2,318.40
1,124.83 1,479.88
1,114.32 1,459.08
10.51 20.80
1,124.83 1,479.88




The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements,

As per our report of even date.

For MSKA & Associates . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICA} Firm Registration No.:1Q5p47W ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate Information

ICC Realty (India} Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in India and was incorporated
on February 12, 2002 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 engaged in the business of leasing of commercial
spaces, operation of a retail mall, operation of a commercial hotel and operation of windmills.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2021 were authorized for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the Board of Directors on June 30, 2021.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule I1l to the Companies Act
2013 (IND AS complain Schedule Ii1), as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value or revalued amount at the end of each reporting period, as explained under accounting
policy 2.13

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting

standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

2.2 Current versus non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is classified as a current asset when it is either:

Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

FVvVv9 Y

All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A liability is classified as a current liability when either;

P Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

B itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

B Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

P There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lia bility for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) are classified as non-current assets/
(liabilities).

The Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalent, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

2.3  Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as non-current and current investments, at fair value, at each balance
sheet date. Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value
or where fair values are disclosed in Note 37.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nor-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

* level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

* level3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes
- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
- Investment properties
- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost)

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held
for sale.

External valuation experts are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuation
experts is decided upon annually by the management.

2.4 Revenue from contract with customers:

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the
customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of indirect taxes, returns and discounts.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with
customers are provided in Note 23.
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Notesto the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021

(i)  Hotel operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banquet services:

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes
room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognized once the rooms are occupied, food
and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

In relation to other allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service
rendered.

(i) Commercial leasing:

Rental income from investment property:

Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless increase in rentals are in line with expected general inflation. The lease term
is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the
lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Company is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that
option. The Company collects Service tax/Goods and service tax on behalf of the government and therefore, it is
not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue. Contingent rents if any are
recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Maintenance and service charges:

Maintenance and service charges arising from operating leases are recognized as and when the services are
rendered.

Other activities incidental to commercial leasing:

Other activities incidental to commercial leasing is recognized as and when the services are rendered and are
shown net of expenses i.e. electricity expenses.

Sale of construction material, including fitout sale:

Revenue from sale of construction materials is recognized when control of the goods have been transferred to the
customer.

The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes, GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, these
are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount {iike volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc.),
the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for rendering the
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The estimate of variable
consideration for expected future volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc. are made on the most likely
amount method. Revenue is disclosed net of such amounts.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policy no. 2.13
Financial instruments — Financial assets at amortized cost,

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before

the Company renders services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. .

Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.




g

ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer.
The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities {and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at
the end of each reporting period.

2.5 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR’), which is its functional currency and
presentation currency; the currency of primary economic environment in which company operates.

2.5.1 Transactions and balances

Initial recognition; Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate of
exchange at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

2.5.2 Translation and exchange differences

Monetary items: Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at their
respective functional currency exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items: Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of initial recognition. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on iterns whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’) or profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

2.6 Taxes
2.6.1 Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities; on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting period in
accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognized
in other comprehensive income or in equity, respectively, and not in the Profit and Loss. The Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

2.6.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for al! taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent

that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered, =




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises of purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and borrowing costs, if
the recognition criteria are met.

The cost also include initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discount or rebate
are deducted in arriving at purchase price. Such cost include the cost of replacing parts of property, plant and equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals; the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

CWIP comprises of cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use as at balance sheet date.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at, based on the management’s estimated
useful lives. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation
on its property, plant and equipment.

Useful Life Estimated by the Management (years)
Assets IT Park Hotel Mall
Building 58 30 58
Building facade 30 - 30
Plant and Equipment 20 20 15
Electrical installations 20 20 10
Furniture and Fixtures 15 10 10
Computers 6 G 6
Computer Software 3-10 3-10 3
Office Equipment 20 20 5
Windmiils 18 - -
Vehicles 10 10 -

The management has estimated the useful lives of the following classes of assets:

The useful lives of buildings are estimated as 30 years, for hotel. These lives are lower than those indicated in schedule
11

Plant and machinery, electrical installations and office equipment are depreciated over the estimated usefuf lives of
20 years for IT Park and Hotel, which are higher than those indicated in schedule !,

The useful lives of furniture and fittings are estimated as 15 years for IT Park. These lives are higher than those
indicated in schedule II.

Computers and vehicles are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 6 years and 10 years respectively, which
are higher than those indicated in schedule II.

Windmills are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 18 years which is lower than those indicated in schedule
.

Computer software has different lives ranging between 3-10 years based on their useful lives.
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from Its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
asset (caiculated as the ditference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognised.

The management undertakes a review of the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant
and equipment at the end of each reporting period and adjustments are made whenever necessary.

2.8 Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific usefui lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the
building over estimated useful tives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 58 years from the date of original purchase.,

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited
external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

2.9 Leases

The determination of whether an airangement Is, or contalns, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
speclfic asset or assets or the arrangement conveys  right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

2.9.1 Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

2.10 Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

2.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense
category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

2.12 Inventories

Inventory of food, beverages and tobacco are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value, Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis. Cost include cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than refundable), inward
freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiability or equity
instrument of another entity.

2.13.1  Financial assets
2.13.1.1 Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
profit and loss (‘FVTPL’).

2.13.1.2  Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not classified as fair value through
profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognised using trade date or settlement date
accounting,

2.13.1.3  Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
a) At amortised cost
b) At fair value through profit or loss {‘FVTPL’)

(a)  Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’} method, less impairment, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expens




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited /-

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{income) in the profit and loss statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the company.

(b)  Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

A Financial asset shall be measured at FVTPL, unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI. The Company classifies
all equity or puttable financial instruments held for trading as measured at FVTPL, Such instruments are measured at fair
value at initial recognition as well as at each reporting date. The fair value changes are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss eg mutual fund. Further, the Company may make an irrevocable election to designate a financial asset as
FVTPL, at initial recognition, to reduce or eliminate a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

2.13.1.4 De-recognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed
from the Company’s Balance Sheel) when the rights Lo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Company
has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained !
substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

2.13.1.5 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, The Coempany applies expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

> Financial assets measured at amortised cost

¥ Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
Increase In credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
12-month LCL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
alt the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate (EIR}. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial
instrument over the expected life of the financial instrument.
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ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured at amortized €ost, revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
l.e,, as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce Impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments based on shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The impairment loss/ {gain} is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for impairment loss/ {gain) on financial
assets measured at FVOCI, which shall be recognised in the QOCI.

2.13.2 Financial liabilities
2.13.2.1 Classification

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
profit or loss ('FVTPL’).

2.13.2.2 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of, in the case of financial liabilities not classified as fair value
through profit or loss {‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Thisis the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost, After initfal recognition, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.13.2.3 De-recognition

statement of profit and loss.

2.13.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

or the counterparty.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount,
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of t
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2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining the
fair value less costs to disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,

an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corrohorated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices
for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and short-term deposits with a maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

In the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as defined above net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered as Integral part of the Company’s cash management,

Segmernt reporting

An operating segment is a component of a company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions about resource aflocation and assess its performance and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Company has identified the Board of Directors of the Company as its CODM.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with.

Grants related to income are presented as part of profit or loss, they are deducted in reporting the related expense.
Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company.

A contingent liability can arise for obligations that are possible, but it is yet to be confirmed whether there is present
obligation that could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

The Company also discloses contingent liability when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot

be made.

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but only makes disclosures for the same in the financial statements.

Provision for employment benefits

2.20.1 Defined contribution plans
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contributions payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service.

2.20.2 Defined benefit plans

Post-employment benefit in the form of gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation
under the scheme is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method {(‘PUCM’). The scheme
is non-funded.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
P The date of the plan amendment or curtailment and
¥ The date on which the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘employee benefit expenses’ in the statement of profit
and loss:

P Service costs comprising current service costs, pasl-service cusls, galns and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements
¥ Net interest expense or income

Refer Note 34 for additional disclosures relating to Company’s defined benefit plan.
2.20.3 Provision for compensated absences

Provision for short term compensated absences is recognised for accumulated leaves that are expected to be utilized within
a period of twelve months from the balance sheet date. Long term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method, as at each reporting date. The Company recognises the entire
changes in net defined benefit obligation, including re-measurements in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Other income

Interest Income:

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate ('EIR")
applicable. For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded Lising the effective interest
rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is
included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends:
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. Dividend
income is included under the head ‘Other income’ in the statement of profit and loss.
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The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of
the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties and accounts for the lease contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters availahle when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the Company’s control. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in
the year ending March 31, 2021 is included in the following notes -

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the graluity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response
to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 34.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021.

Others

Certain tenants have not paid service tax charged by the Company on lease rents during the year ended March 31, 2010 and March
31, 2011 and disputed levy of service tax through ‘Retailers Association’. In said case, Hon'ble Supreme Court has vide order dated
October 14, 2011, directed the service receivers to deposit 50% of tax liability in three installments and granted stay on balance
dues and the matter is sub judice.

Based on legal advice, the Company is no longer liable to pay service tax in present case as the service receivers were directed by
Hon'ble Supreme Court to pay the service tax and matter is sub judice.

Accordingly, the Company will adjust service tax liability remaining outstanding as at March 31, 2021 of Rs. 72.22 Lacs {March 31,
2019.0f Rs.72,22 Lacs) with corresponding trade receivables on the basis of evidence of service tax payments provided by tena

e
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Note 5 - Investment properties As at March 31, 2021

Freehold land Frerhald Ruildings Total
Gross block
Opening 2,719.17 42,652.50 45,371.67
Additions - 117.33 117.33
Disposals - - -
Closing balance 2,719.17 42,769.83 45,489.00
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening - 6,268.31 6,268.31
Charge for the year - 2,261.66 2,261.66
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 8,529.97 8,529,97
Net Block 2,719.17 34,239.86 36,959.03

Investment properties As at March 31, 2020

Freehold land Freehold Buildings Total
Gross block
Opening 2,719.17 42,443.62 45,162.79
Additions - 208.88 208.88
Disposals - - -
Closing bulance 2,719.17 42,652.50 45,371.67
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening 3,879.33 3,879.33
Charge for the year - 2,388.98 2,388.98
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 6,268.31 6,268.31
Net Block 2,719.17 36,384.19 39,103.36

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended Miarch 31, 2020

Rental income derived from Investment properties 13,028.96 15,902.06
Less: Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties 1,464.31 2,059.82
that generated rental income during the yuut

Profit from investment properties before depreciation 11,564.65 13,842.24
Less : Depreciation 2,261,66 2,388.98
Profit from investment properties 9,302.99 11,453.26
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Reconciliation of fair value of the Investment properties are as under

Particulars as at March 31, 2021

Investment Property Total
Opening Balance 287,980.00 287,980.00
Fair value movement for the year 8,321.67 8,321.67
Purchases - -
Capitalised during the year 117.33 117.33
Closing as at year end 296,419.00 296,419.00
Particulars as at March 31, 2020
Investment Property Total
Opening Balance 278,896.00 278,896.00
Fair value movement for the year 8,875.12 8,875.12
Purchases - -
Capitalised during the year 208.88 208.88
Closing as at year end 287,980.00 287,980.00
Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to investment properties :
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Range (weighted average)
inputs Asat March 31,2021  As at March 31, 2020
Investment Property Market Method Leasable area 1,319,040 sft 1,311,405 sft
Rate adopted Rs. 17500-35500 per sft Rs. 16000-33500 per sft

Description of valuation Method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Thite Valuers & Engineers Pvt. Ltd., an accredited independent and Government certified valuer. The valuation was
conducted through a market rate approach. Under this approach the market value has been obtained by considering the sale consideration of the similar properties, Under this
method average rate has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting various positive and negative factors associated with the property under
valuation. For constructed properties depreciation market rate is taken for valuation.
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Note 6 - Intangible assets As at March 31, 2021

Computer software Total
Deemed Cost
Opening Balance 33.93 33.93
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing Balance 33.93 33.93
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 24.16 24.16
Charge during the year 8.17 8.17
Disposals - -
Closing Balance 32.33 32.33
Net Block 1.60 1.60

Intangible assets As at March 31, 2020

Computer software Total
Deemed Cost
Qpening Balance 17.59 17.59
Additions 16.34 16.31
Disposals - -
Closing Balance 33.93 33.93
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 15.65 15.65
Charge during the year 8.51 8.51
Disposals - -
Closing Balance 24.16 24.16
Net Block 9.77 9.77
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Note 7 - Loans

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposit 534.08 480.27 433.01 320.10
Total Loans 534.08 480.27 433.01 320.10
Note 8 - Other financial assets
Non-current Current

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

As at Margh 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Non-current bank balances 60.56 213.97 - -

60.56 213.97 - -

Interest accrued but not due - - 196.16 179.25

Other receivables - - - 41.37

- - 196.16 220.62

Total other financial assets 60.56 213.97 196.16 220.62

Note 9 - Income tax assets (net)

Non-current Current

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 1698.32 801.46 25.05 14.93
Total Current tax asset(net) 1,698.32 801.46 25.05 14.93
Note 10 - Other assets
Non-current Current

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

As at_ March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Unbilled revenue
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good

Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good

Other advances
Service tax receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total Other assets

713.79 290.76 610.26 325.33
14393 183.34 - -
857.72 474.10 610.26 325.33
- - 173.03 388.57

- - 2,76 2.76

- - 175.79 391.33

- - 2,76 2.76

- - 173.03 388.57

- - 53.50 51.50

- - 53.50 51.50

- - 3.56 3.56
86.35 47.25 182.22 188.26
86.35 47.25 185.78 191.82
944.07 521.35 1,022,57 957.22
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Note 11 - Inventories (valued at lower of cost and NRV)

Particulars

Current

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Food, beverages and other supplies
Others

Total Inventories

307.33 407.53
4.16 3.04
311.49 410.57

Note 12 - Current Investments

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Investments in mutual fund
Investment in Mutual funds

Total Current investments

Aggregated book value of unquoted investments
Aggregated market value of unquoted investments

1,003.24 1,080.63
1,003.24 1,080.63
1,003.24 1,080.63
1,003.24 1,080.63

Note 13 - Trade receivables

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Credit impaired

Less : Allowance for credit impaired
Total Trade receivables

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severall

any director is a partner or director or a member.

For transactions with other related parties, refer note no. 35.

1,241.49 1,115.93
726.16 1,206.30
360.76 330.37

2,328.41 2,652.60
360.76 330.37

1,967.65 2,322.23

y or jintly with any other person and from firms or private companies respectively in which

Note 14A - Cash and bank balances

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with hanks:
—On current accounts

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand

1,114.32 832.09
- 626.99

10.51 20.30
1,124.83 1,479.88

i
i
i
i
|
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Note 148 - Other bank balances

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Margin money

Other bank balance

Deposits with maturity for more than 12 months 60.56 213.97 - -
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than - - 7,779.83 6,797.82
12 months
60.56 213.97 7,779.83 6,797.82
Amount disclosed under non-current financial assets (refer note 8) (60.56) (213.97)
- - 7,779.83 6,797.82

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Balances with banks:
- On current accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand

Total Cash and cash equivalents

1,114.32 832.09

- 626.99

10.51 20.80

1,124.83 1,479.88
1,124.83 1,479.88

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars As at 31-Mar-2020 Cash flows Changes in fair value As at 31-Mar-2021
Non- current borrowings (excluding items listed below) 46,593.77 {2,820.25) - 43,773.52
Total liabilities from financing activities 46,593.77 (2,820.25) - 43,773.52

*Deposit kept against DSRA, bank guarantee and sinking fund of X 1948.5 Lacs (March 31, 2020: 1929.55Lacs).

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non-current
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

Current

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Trade receivables - - 1,967.65 2,322.23
Cash and cash equivalents 8,904.66 8,277.70
Other financial assets 594.64 694.24 629.17 540.72
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 594.64 694.24 11,501.48 11,140.65

e
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Note 15, Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Authorised shares
Authorised share capital 2,000.00 2,000.00
No. of shares (20000000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,071.40 1,071.40

10,714,000 (Previous Year: 10,714,000) Equity shares of 1,071.40 1,071.40

{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 10,714,000 1,071.40 11,490,000 1,149.00
Buyback of shares {776,000} {77.60)
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,714,000 1,071.40 10,714,000 1,071.40

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of X 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company has
declared and paid dividend during the current year. The Company has not declared any dividend during the previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of-the Company, after distribution of preferential
amaunts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number af equity shares hild by the sharaholders,

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

_Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
% holding in the class No. of shares % holding in the class No. of shares
Name of the shareholder
Equity shares of X 10 each fully paid
Premsagar Infra Realty Mrivate Limited 4534 % 4,857,668 4534 % 4,857,668
BRE Asia ICC Holdings Ltd 50.00 % 5,357,000 50.00 % 5,357,000

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

{d) Equity shares bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019 Asat March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shares bought back by the Company * - 776,000 - - -

*-The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 17, 2019 and the shareholders by way of Special Resolution on July 18, 2019, approved the buy back of the fully paid equity
shares of the face value of 10/- each of the Company from its shareholder including promoters and promoter group of the Company as on the record date, on a proportionate basis at a price of
1507/ per share for an aggregate amount not exceeding 116,94,32,000/-. The Company completed the Buy Back Process on July 22, 2019 and has complied with all the requisite formalities with
Registrar of Companies and other regulatory authorities.

-In accordance with section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of 7,760,000/- equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an
appropriation from Securities Premium Account,
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Note 16 - Other equity

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Securities premium

Balance as per the last financial statements 15,102.73 26,797.05
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares - (11,616.72)
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve - (77.60)
Closing balance 15,102.73 15,102.73

Retained Earnings

Balance as per the last financial statements 1,402.22 19,167.48
Profit for the year 565.27 7,204.82
Less: Utilised for Dividend ] - 20,000.00
Less: Tax on Dividend - 4,111.00
Less: Tax on Buy back of shares - 876.28
Other comprehensive income/ (expenses) 34.10 17.19
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 2,001.59 1,402.22

Capital redemption Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements 363.03 285.43
Add: Transferred from securities premium - 77.60
Closing balance . 363.03 363.03
Total other equity 17,467.35 16,867.98

Capital redemption reserve

During financial year ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2020 the Company bought back its shares and in order to comply with
the requirements of the Company law, the Company created Capital redemption reserve.

Securities premium reserves

The Company had issued equity shares at premium in prior years, and as a result securities premium was created. In the current year same has
been utilised to buy back the shares and also for creation of capital redemption reserve related to buy back of shares.
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Note 17 - Borrowings

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, 2021

Asat March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Term loans (secured) [Refer note 1}

Indian rupee loan (secured)

Long term maturities of finance lease obligation
Debentures (secured)

3,920 debentures (March 31, 2020: 4,000) [Refer note 2]
3,920 Non-convertible redeemable debentures

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings
Amount disclosed under the head “other current financial liabilities”
(refer note 18)
Total Borrowings

Note 1: Indian rupee loan

Secured by (i) first charge over land, building & receivable pertaining to ICC Tech Park & Trade Tow

3,467.08 6,319.34 1,407.19 549.68
38,003.28 38,981.37 978.66 743.38
41,470.36 45,300.71 2,385.85 1,293.06

41,470.36 45,300.71 2,385.85 1,293.06
: - (2,385.85; (1,293.06;
41,470.36 45,300.71 - -

The loan carries interest at the rate of 7.20% to 9.70% and is repayable in 72 in unequal monthly installments from December 2018.

Note 2 : 3,920 Non-convertible redeemable debentures

er (i} first charge over collections generated from ICC Tech Park & Trade Tower .

9.50% p.a. payable annually secured non-convertible redeemable debentures of Rs. 10 lacs each were issued on August 05, 2019 and are listed at BSE on August 14,2019. The debentures
will be repaid with yearly instalments as per the amortization schedule and the final instalment will be paid in the 5th year,

The Debt shall be secured by a first ranking exclusive mortgage and charge in favour of the INRI Trusteeshi
over the Land anu Profect Assets, Receivables, Insurance assets and Account Assets as more particularly defined in the Debenture Trust Deed

given credit rating of IND AA- with 'Stable’ fium India Ratings & Research India Private Limited,

p Services Limitad {'Dabenture Trustee') {for the banefit of the Sewurid Pdrlius)
dated 26th July 2019. The Company was

Note 18 - Other financial liabilities

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Security deposits

Employee related liabilities

Retention money

Capital creditors

Sinking fund

Interest accrued but not due

Total financial liabilities

- - 2,385.85 1,293.06
1,213.55 2,278.34 4,324.89 3,796.02
- - 208.95 188.80

- - 111.79 150.43

- - 234,61 301.35

245.77 245,77 - -

- - 2,438.45 2,735.74
1,459.32 2,524.11 9,704.54 8,465.40

Note 19 - Trade payables

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(refer note 36)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small

Total trade payables

110.45 166.23
1,870.09 2,308.10
1,980.54 2,474.33

"
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Note 20 - Other Llabllities

As at March 81, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Advance from customers 427.42 351,50
Others
Income received in advance 132.33 187.19
Service tax payable 72.71 72.72
Statutory dues payable . 204.07 251.85
Value added tax and works contract tax payable 10.57 16.06
Goods and services tax payable 170.46 183.52
Other fiabilities 70.75 53.33
1,088.31 1,116.17

Note 21 - Deferred revenue

Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Deferred revenue 203.37 265.96 178.73 281.31
Total deferred revenue 203.37 265.96 178.73 281.31
As at 31-Mar-2021 As at 31-Mar-2020
Opening 547.27 542.07
Deferred during the year 238.80 315.12
Released to the statement of profit and loss (403.96) (309.92)
As at year end 382.11 547.27

Note 22 - Provisions

Non-turrent Current i
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 81, 2020 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 i

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment 18.93 . 52.91 7.24 26.32
Provision for gratuity 107.54 105.12 3213 24.29

Total provisions 126.47 158.03 39.37 50.61 I
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Note 23 - Revenue from operations

Year ended March 31,2021  Year ended March 31, 2020

A. Revenue from rental income 13,028.96 "~ 15,902.06

B. Revenue from contract with customers
I. Services transferred over time
From commercial leasing
Maintenance and parking charges 1,453.63 2,000.64
Other activities incidental to commercial leasing (net) 78.91 115.34

Erom hotel operations

Room income 904.60 8,485.44
Other hotel services including banquet income and membership 380.93 1,710.01
fees

2,818.07 12,311.43

11 Goods transferred at a point in time

Erom commercial leasing

Revenue from sale of construction materials 10.04 0.35
10.04 0.35
Revenue from sale of construction materials {net) 10.04 0.35

From hotel operations
Sale of food and beverages 2,322.45 8,854.55

From windmill operations

Revenue from windmill [net of windmill income Rs. 422.83 156.04 385.09
(March 31, 2020: Rs. 1,075.83) adjusted against power, fuel and light
expenses]
2,488.53 9,239.99
Total revenue from contract with customers 5,306.60 21,551.42
Revenue from operations (net) 18,335.56 37,453.48
Total revenue from operations 18,335.56 37,453.48
Type of goods or service Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
Revenue from commercial leasing 1,542.58 2,116.33
Revenue from hotel operations 3,607.98 19,050.00
Revenue from windmill 156.04 385.09
5,306.60 21,551.42

Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit & loss with the contracted price
Year ended March 31, 2021  Year ended March 31, 2020

Revenue as per contracted price 5,521.93 22,193.52
Adjustments
Discount 215.33 642.10

Revenue from contract with customers 5,306.60 21,551.42
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Note 24 - Other income

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

Interest income on

- Bank deposits

- on inter corporate deposit
- Others

Other non operating income
Profit of sale of fixed assets
Profit on sale of current investment

Liability written back

Fair value gain on current investment
Net gain on foreign exchange fluctuations
Miscellaneous income

310.80 293.59
- 3.06
30.06 62.78
340.86 359.43
0.10 1.97
14.78 111.61
14.88 113.58
0.49 3.86
5.41 3.21
3.35 -
319.08 347.72
328.33 354.79
684.07 827.80

Note 25 - Cost of sales

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

Cost of food and beverages consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverages consumed

Cost of Construction material sold

Total cost of sales

407.53 298.61
588.76 2,724.77
996.29 3,023.39
307.33 407.53
688.96 2,615.86

1.45 -
690.41 2,615.86

Details of food and beverages consumed
There are no items of food and beverages whose purchases exceeded 10% of total consumption. it is not practicable to furnish the

information in view of the large number of items which differ in size and nature, each being less than 10% in value of the total.

Note 26 - Employee benefit expenses

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expenses
Staff welfare expenses

1,469.29 2,802.39
82.86 149.24
52.27 48.63

149.63 405.45

1,754.05 3,405.71

S
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Note 27 - Other expenses

Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020

Open access charges
Power, fuel and light
Less: credit for energy generated by windmills

Lease amortisation expenses
Rates and taxes
Insurance charges
Housekeeping expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Buildings
Vehicle
Others
Advertising and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fees
Linen, laundry and cleaning
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies
Auditors’ remuneration (refer note 27.01 below)
Other incideitul yeevity expenses (net)

Asset management charges
Royalty fees

Management fees*
Security expenses

Provision for doubtful receivables and advances

Bad debts written off

Pravision for doubtful debts wiillen back

Loss on discarded of fixed assets
Debit balance written off

Exchange loss (net)

CSR Expenses (refer note 27.02 below}
Miscellanenus expenses

62.70 95.55
936.40 2,015.41
422.83 1,075.83
513.57 939.58

2.70 13.11
1,190.53 1,455.71
212,03 158.63
323,51 670.00
371.18 563.84
396.77 925.02
3.51 13.60

92.05 108.13
346.63 1,552.55

8.02 62.91

14.09 51.72
380.56 872.71

53.16 367.96
283.53 1,498.37

4.07 4.08

64.06 362.43
213.98 243.33

71.30 383.23
(31.68) 501.93
225.05 492.98

81.85 143.07

51.89 a0.63
(51.46) -

- 2.13

0.01 82.67

- 56.39

162.00 1341
61.94 96.45
5,107.55 11,942.82

*Management Fees is negative in FY 2020-21 on account of operating loss in hotel and same wili be adjusted against future profits,

27.01 Auditors' Remuneration

Year ended March 31, 2021  Year ended March 31, 2020

As auditor:

- Audit fee

- Reimbursement of expenses
- Limited review

3.25 3.25
0.07 0.08
075 0.75
o 4.07 4.08

27.02 Details of CSR expenditure:

As per Section 135 of Lhe Companies Act, 2013, a cory
areds fur CSR activitios are the activities mentioned in the Schedul

porate soclal responsibility (CSR) eommittee has been formed by the Company. The

activities which are specified in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013 are as mentioned below :

e Vil of the Cuinpanles Act, 2013, Amount spent during the year on
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Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

b) Amount spent by the Company during the year ending on March 31,

2021:

i} Construction/acquisition of any asset
i) On purpose other than (i) above

¢) Amount spent by the Company during the year ending on March 31,
2020:

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
i} On purpose other than (i} above

In Cash

162.00

In Cash

13411

156.28

Yet to be paid in cash

Yet to be paid in cash

134.11
Total

162.00
Total

134.11

Note 28 - Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)

Less: depreciation on assets relating to other incidental activity

3,321.96 4,182.08
2,261.66 2,388.98
8.17 8.51
(17.70) (20.34)
5,574.09 6,559.23

Note 29 - Finance costs

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

Interest expenses

- on bank facilities 529.65 1,552.55

- on inter corparate deposit - 15.02

~on Debentures 4,098.37 2,893.86

- financial instruments at amortised cost 487.15 468.21

- on others 0.40 28.68

5,115.57 4,958.32

Other borrowing costs

Bank charges 3.48 11.91
3.48 11.91

Less: attributable to the qualifying assets - -
3.48 11.91

Total finance cost 5,119.05 4,970.23

Note 30. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS

Net profit after tax 565.27 7,204.82

Denominator for basic and diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic and

diluted EPS {in numbers) 107.14 109.54

Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of % 10 each 5.28 65.78

B
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Note 31. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31,2020 are:

Statement of profit and loss section

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 1,084,73 1,789.30
Adjustment for current tax of previous years 44.96 (17.57)
Deferred tax:
MAT credit entitlement for earlier years (920.48) (189.12)
Total current tax expense 209.21 1,582.61
OCl Section:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCl during the year - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 209.21 1,582.61

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accounting profit before tax 774.48 8,787.44
Computed tax expense
Atlindia's statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2020: 29.12%) 225.53 2,558.90
Adjustments for:
Other non deductible expenses for tax purpose 23.60 19.53
income from sepcified business U/s 35 AD of Income Tax Act set off 767.68 (999.63)
from brought forward losses
Income exempt from tax {net of expenses) (79.16) (271.40)
Adjustment in current tax for prior period 44.96 (17.57)
Tax rate difference - -
MAT credit entitlement (920.48) (189.12)
Tax on temporary disallowances on which deferred tax asset has not 147.09 481.90
been recognised
Others

At the effective income tax rate of 27.01% [March 31, 2020: 18.01%]

income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 209.22 1,582.61
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Balance sheet

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (5,181.13) (5,495.63)
Tax losses 6,904.44 5,807.02
Provision for gratuity 40.67 37.68
Provision for bonus 53.48 43.27
Provision for leave encashment 7.62 23.07
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 105.05 96.20
Fair valuation of security deposit (121.02) (169.25)
Fair valuation of investments in mutual fund (1.58) (0.94)
Deferred income on fair valuation of security deposit 111.27 159.36
Unbilled revenue (290.59) (113.45)
Others - (0.79)
Deferred tax related to OCl items (9.93) {(5.01)
Net deferred tax expense/(income) - -
Net deferred tax asséts/(liabilities) 1,618.28 381.53

Net deferred tax assets recognised in Balance Sheet*

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Deferred tax liahility
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets (net)**

(5,604.25)
5,604.25

(5,785.06)
5,785.06

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

* In view of there being no reasonable probability for availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets as at March 31, 2021 can be realised, the same has not been recognised. Accordingly, tax asset has been recognised only to

the extent of deferred tax liability.

** MAT credit entitlement of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs.Nil) has been grouped with deferred tax asset.

Ny o
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Note 32. Segment Information

(i) Revenue from hotel operations - Revenue from hotel operation comprise of revenue from sale of room, food and beverages and allied services related to hotel operation, including

income from telecommunication and internet services.

(i) Revenue from leasing - Revenue from leasing operations comprises of lease rentals from the properties given under lease.

{ili) Revenue from windmill - Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been passed to the buyer which is usually on credit provided for
transmission of electricity based on the data provided by the Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited in electricity bills.

Year ended March 31, 2021

Particutars Commercial Leasing Hotel Windmills Eiil Total
Revenue
External customers 14,537.31 3,642.21 156.04 - 18,335.56
Inter-segment 68.35 422.83 {491.18) -
Total revenue 14,605.66 3,642.21 578.87 {491.18 18,335.56
Segment result 8,790.91 {2,522.30) 223.23 {491.18) 6,000.66
Segment Profit 8,790.91 (2,522.30) 223.23 (491.18) 6,000.66
Segment assets 53,123.50 16,782.44 1,050.18 - 70,956.12
Total Assets 53,123.50 16,782.44 1,050.18 - 70,956.12
Segment liabilities 7,839.28 2,114.51 - - 9,953.79
Total Liabilities 7,839.28 2,114.51 - - 9,953.79
Depreciations 3,728.83 1,681.38 163.75 - 5,573.96
Capital Expenditure during the year 235.66 227.95 - - 463.61
Year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Commercial Leasing Hotel Windmills Eliminations Total
Revenue
External customers 17,975.09 19,093.30 385.09 - 37,453.48
inter-segment 70.74 1,075.83 {1,146.57) -
Total revenue 18,045.83 19,093.30 1,460.92 {1,146.57) 37,453.48
Segment result 9,913.23 4,132.97 987.23 {1,146.57) 13,886.86
Segment Profit 9,913.23 4,132.97 987.23 {1,146.57} 13,886.86
Segment Assets 55,315.41 19,142.85 1,115.65 75,573.90
Total Assets 55,315.41 19,142.85 1,115.65 - 75,573.90
Segment Liabilities 8,746.78 2,536.24 - - 11,283.02
Total Liabilities 8,746.78 2,536.24 - - 11,283.02
4,445.37 1,920.47 193.39 - 6,559.23
Capital Expenditure during the year 621.77 791.70 - - 1,413.47
Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements
Reconciliation of profit March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Segment profit 6,000.66 13,886.86
Finance income 340.86 359.43
Other finance costs {5,119.04) {4,970.23)
Unallocated expenses (468.20) {604.08)
Unallocated income 20.19 11546
Profit before tax 774.47 8,787.44
Reconciliation of assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Segment operating assets 70,956,12 75,573.90
Tax asset {net) 1,723.37 816.39
Other unallocated assets 2,110.27 2,185.71
Total assets 74,789.76 78,576.00
Reconciliation of liabilities March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Segment operating liabilities 9,953.79 11,283.02
Borrowings 43,856.18 46,593.77
Other unallocated liabilities 2,441.04 2,759.84
Total liabilities 56,251.01 60,636.63
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 33. Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits
A, Defined benefit plans:

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn sztary for each completed vear of servi

Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets as at_March 31, 2021

ize. The scheme is non-funded.

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss

Remeasurement gains/{losses) in other comprehensive income

April 1, 2020 Service cost Transfer in /Out  Net interest expense Sub-totalincluded in  Benefit paid Rzturnonplenassets  Actuarial changes arising  Actuarial changesarising Experience adjustments Sub-total included is OCI Cortributions by March 31, 2021
statement of profi and bexcluding amounts from changes in from changes in financial employer
loss included in ne: interest di hi i
sxpensa) assumptions
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation (129.41) (44.98) - (7.29) (2.27} 7.92 - (0.49) {2.19) 36.78 34.10 (139.66)
Fair value of plan assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Benefit Liability {129.41) {44.98} - {7.29) £2.27) 7.92 - (0.49) (2.19) 36.78 3410 (139.66}
Total benefit liability {129.41} {44.98} - {7.29) _ {52.27) 7.92 - 0.49 (2.19) 36.78 34,10 {139.66]
Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets as at March 31, 2020
Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss Remeasurement gains/{losses) in other comprehensive income
April 1, 2019 Service cost Transferin /Out  Net interest expense Sub-total includedin  Benefit paid  Returr on plan assets  Actuarial changes arising  Actuarial changes arising  Experience adjustments  Sub-total included in OCI Contributions by March 31, 2020
statement of profit and {=xcluding amounts from changes in from changes in financial =mployer
loss induded in nef interest de i i
expense) assumptions

Gratuity
Oefined benefit obligation (114.71) {39.05) (2.28) (7.28) (43.63) 1674 - {1.20} 240 18.00 719 (129.41)
Fair vaiue of plan assets - - - - - - - - - - - bl
Benefit Liability {114.71) {35.05) 2.29) (7.28) (£3.63) 16.74 - (1.20) 2.40 16.00 17.19 (125.41)
Total benefit liability (114.73) (39.05) {2.29) {7.28) (23.63) 1674 _ - {2.20) 2.40 16.00 17.19 {129.41)
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The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown befow:

For Hotel operations

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Discount rate 4.90% 5.60%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 36.00% 28.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment IALM(2012-14) ult ALMI(2012-14) ult
For Commercial Leasing
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Discount rate 6.60% 6.70%
Future salary increase 9.00% 9.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 12.00% 12.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment 1ALM{2012-14) ult 1ALM{2032-14) uit
A itati itivity analysis for signil ion is as shown below:
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Sensitivity level (i ) / di in itivity level (i }/ decrease in
defined benefit obligation defined benefit obligation
{impact) for the current year (Impact) for the current
Discount rate 1% increase 4.21 1% increase 4.51
1% decrease {4.53) 1% decrease (4.87}
Future salary increase 1% increase (3.14) 1% increase (3.60)
1% decrease 2.98 1% decrease 3.41
Withdrawal rate 1% increase 0.17 1%increase 007
1% decrease (0.19) 1% decrease 0.07)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obli

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

as a result of

Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits Year ended March 31,2021  Year ended March 31, 2020
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period} 3213 24.29
Between 2 2nd 5 years 85.82 77.88
Beyond 5 vears 72.28 116.38
Total expected payments 190.23 218.55

Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation {based on discounted cash flows

Year ended March 31, 2021
Gratuity 3.38- 10.05

Year ended March 31, 2020

5.92-10.53

changes in key
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 34. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments: where the Company is the lessor
The Company has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of commercial space along with interior fit-outs such as furniture and
fixture, air conditioners, etc.. These leases have terms of between one and 5 years. Some of the leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on
an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease agreement. Rental income recognised by the Company during
the year is Rs.13,028.96 lacs (March 31, 2020; Rs. 15,902.06 lacs).

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are, as follows:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Within one year 5,811.97 8,870.13
After one year but not more than five years 4,635.37 7,675.27
Above 5 years 953.76 -

b. Capital commitments

Particulars

As at March 31,2021

As at March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on other account and not provided for {net of
advances)

49.81

50.91

c. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Amount in foreign
currency

Amount in Rs.

Amount in foreign
currency

Amount in Rs.

Payables
usp

7.04

515.44

4.78

358.60

d. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Contingent Liabilities
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 35, Related Party Disclosures

Disclosures of transactions with Related Parties are as under:

A. Description of Related Parties
i} Name of the Related party and nature of relationship

A. Related parties where control exists

Nature of relationship

Name of the Company

Investors

Atul Chordia -HUF
Premsagar Infra Reality Private Limited

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Ltd (Earfier Known as Xander
Investment Holding XVI Limited)

place during the year:

B. Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken

Key managerial personnel

Atul Chordia

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives or major shareholders of the Company

EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited

EON Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

A2Z Online Services Private Limited

Lifestyle interior Private Limited

Panchshil Realty & Developers Privale Limited
P ONE Infrastructure Private Limited

Shahenshah Apparels and Accessories Private Limited {Till

May, 27, 2020)

C. Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2021 | Year ended March 31, 2020

Reimbursement of expenses
A27 Online Services Private Limited
Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Asset Management Charges
A77 Uinline Services Private Limited
Sales Of Construction Material
P ONE Infrastructure Private Limited
CAM Income-Office Block Recovery
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses received
A27 Online Services Private Limited

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

Panchshil infrastructure Holdings Private Limited

EON Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited
Rental income

Project Management fees
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Brokerage Expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Repair & Maintenance
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Fixed Assets Purchase
Panrhshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Signage Ihcome
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Room ,Food & Beverage Revenue
EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Panchshil Intrastructure Holdings Private Limited
EON Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited
Panthshil Cui it ale Park Private Limited

Shahenshah Apparels and Accessories Private Limited

Shahenshah Apparels and Accessories Private Limited

6.54
6.12
1.28

59.78

4.50

0.04
28.35
22.89
21.31

19.21

0.05
1.31
8.20

243.33

95.32
0.41
47.94

25.10

0.51

191.53
48.19
82.51
11.83

0.65
64.45

11.22
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Interest Income

A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Interest Expenses

A2Z Online Services Private Limited

Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Loan Given

A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Loan Given received back

A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Loan taken

A2Z Online Services Private Limited

Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Loan taken repaid

A27 Online Services Private Limited

Panchshil Realty & Devefopers Private Limited
Buy Back of shares including security premium

Atul Chordia -HUF

Premsagar Infra Realty Pvt. Ltd

Atul Chordia

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited
Dividend

Atul Chordia -HUF

Premsagar Infra Realty Pvt. Ltd

Atul Chordia

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited

3.06

8.10
6.93

300.00

300.00

3,600.00
1,500.00

3,600.00
1,500.00

258.75
5,302.14
286.27
5,847.16

442.52
9,067.89
489.59
10,000.00

Balances outstanding as at year end:
Related Party Disclosures-Balance outstanding

Particulars

_As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Ruteivables
Shahenshah Apparels and Accessories Private Limited

A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
P ONE infrastructure Private Limited
_ EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited
Payables
Atul Chordia
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Panchshll Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
EON Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited
Advances given
Panchshif Corporate Park Private Limited
Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Security deposit given
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Unbilled revenue
A27 Online Services Private Limited
Security deposit received
Shahenshah Apparels and Accessories Private Limited

55.31
8.11
5.96

43,23
156
0.82

10.30

67.18
23.76

138
24.14

0.78

6.45
30.42

6.39
0.52

0.05

25.00

Transactions with key management personnel
Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Directors remuneration*

120.00

120.00

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the repoarting period related to key

management personnel,

* The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave encashment, as

they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

S5 T e,
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Note 36. Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006"

Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises

Particular As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
The principal amount and the interest due thereon -
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 110.45 166.23

- Interest due on above 4.44 0.99
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of - -
section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along with the
amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period 10.37 6.60
of delay in making the payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
at end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and 14.81 7.58
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006
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Note 37. Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial Instruments as of March 31, 2021

Particulars

Amortised Cost

Financial assets/labilities at fair

value through profit and loss

Total carrying value

Total fair value

Financial assets

Loans 967.09 - 967.09 967.09
Current investments - 1,003.24 1,003.24 1,003.24
Trade and other receivables 1,967.65 - 1,967.65 1,967.65
Cash and cash equivalents 1,124.83 - 1,124.83 1,124.83
Other bank balances 7,779.83 - 7,779.83 7,779.83
Other financial assets 256.72 - 256.72 256.72
Total-Financial assets 12,096.12 1,003.24 13,099.36 13,099.36
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 43,856.21 - 43,856.21 43,856.21
Other financial liabilities 8,778.01 - 8,778.01 8,778.01
Trade payables 1,980.54 - 1,980.54 1,980.54
Total-Financial liabilities 54,614.76 - 54,614.76 54,614.76

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the C

ompany’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2020

Particulars

Amortised Cost

Financial assets/liabilities at fair

value through profit and loss

Total carrying value

Total fair value

Financial assets

Loans 800.37 - 800.37 800.37
Current investments - 1,080.63 1,080.63 1,080.63
Trade receivables 2,322.23 - 2,322.23 2,322.23
Cash and cash equivalents 1,475.88 - 1,479.88 1,479.88
Other bank balances 6,797.82 - 6,797.82 6,797.82
Other financial assets 434.59 - 434.59 434.59
Total 11,5334.89 1,080.63 12,915,52 12,915.52
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 46,593.77 - 46,593,77 46,593,77
Other financial liablities 9,6Y6.45 - 9,696.45 9,696.45
Trade payables 2,474.33 - 2,474.33 2,474.33
Total 58,764.55 - 58,764.55 58,764.55

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables,

largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

Current investments

The Company's current investments consist of investment in units of mutual funds. The fair va

the measurement date.

Falr value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Compan
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March

_ The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which t
than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to

trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts

he instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
estimate the fair values :

lue of investments in mutual funds is derived from the NAV of the respective units at

y's financial instruments measured at fair value after initial recognition:
31, 2021;

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable Significant unobservable
markets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Investment property March 31 2021 296,419.00 - - 296,419.00
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31 2021 1,003.24 - 1,003.24
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2020 ;
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable Significant unobservable
markets {Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Investment property March 31 2020 287,980.00 - - 287,980.00
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31 2020 1,080.63 1,080.63

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

Ny e
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Note 38. Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

"The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, borrowings and security deposits. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets includes investments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its

operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below:
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market prices comprise three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include barrowings and
investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed-to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant as at March 31,2021
and March 31, 2020.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected the Company profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as foliows:

Risk Interest rate sensitivity Table
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Increase / decrease In Effact on profit before Incrense / decrease in Effect un profie before
basls points tax basis points tax
INR + 50 (243.83) +50 {228.04)
-50 243.83 -50 228.04
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, investment in mutual fund and other financial
instruments,

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. For the fixed lease income, the billing is
done In advance i.e. at the beginning of the month and for variable lease rent and other maintenance charges, the credit period provided is of 7 to 10 days. Thus there are no major
trade receivable balances outstanding at the year end.

In case of hospitality business, credit risk is manged by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, pracedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment,
Outstanding customer recievables are regularly monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 38

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a trade receivable or a group of trade recei is impaired. The C y recognises lifetime expected credit losses for all
trade receivables that do not ¢ i a financing transaction and which are due for more than six months. The expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
The Company uses a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix.

Particulars Not due Within 120 days* More than 120 days* Total
March 31, 2021
Estimated total gross carrying amount 34.75 1,177.03 1,116.63 2,328.41
ECL - Simplified approach - - {360.78) {360.78)
Net carrying amount 34.75 1,177.03 755.85 1,967.63
Particulars Not due Within 120 days* More than 120 days* Total
March 31, 2020
Estimated total gross carrying amount 44348 1,257.02 952.09 2,652.59
ECL - simplified apneoarh . ) (40,88) {48Y.4Y) (33037)
Net carrying amount . 443 48 1,216.14 662.60 2,322.22

* Provision is made for recelvables whure ruLovery Is constdered doubtful wrespective of dug dale. Whets an amount is outstanding for mnre than 365 daya the Company usuully
provides for the same unless there is clear visibility of recovery.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities {(when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) .

Forelgn currency sensitivity
The following tables demansirate this sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In USD axchange rates, with all ullier vailables held constant. the impact on the Company's profit
before tax ie due to changgg n the fair value of moneldiy assets and labliities,
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Particulars As at March 31, 2021

Change in USD rate Amount
usp +5% (25.77)
-5% 25.77
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 -
Change in USD rate Amount.
usp +5% {17.93)
- 5%; 17.93
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's finance department is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and polices related to such risk are overseen by Senior management. Management
monitors the Company's net liquidity position on a monthly and quarterly basis through its Senfor management meeting and board meetings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis

of expected cash flows.

The Senior management ensures that the future cash flow needs are met through cash flow from the operating activities and short term borrowings from banks,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Risk g Liguidity risk As at March 31, 2021
On d d Less than 3 i 3-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years| Total
As at March 31, 2021
Borrowings 315.18 2,070.69 41,470.34 43,856.21
Security deposit 2,600.00 338.03 1,386.85 1,062.34 151.22 5,538.44
Trade Payables 253.22 1,727.32 1,980.54
Other financial liabilities 111.79 5.94 2,667.12 245.77 3,030.62
Payable to employees 2.56 206.39 208.94
Total 2,711.79 914.93 8,058.37 42,778.45 151.22 54,614.75
Risk Liquidity risk As at March 31, 2020
On demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months| 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings - 34.62 1,258.44 45,300.71 - 46,593.77
Security deposit 3,796.02 - - 2,278.34 - 6,074.36
Trade Payables - 404.14 2,070.19 - - 2,474.33
Other financial liabilities 150.43 30.02 3,007.06 245.77 - 3,433.28
Payable to employees - 4.38 184.43 - - 188.81
Total 3,946.45 473.16 6,520.12 47,824.82 - 58,764.55

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capltal management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the e
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to sy,

adjustments to it in light of the changes in economic and market conditions.

1 Particulars | _AsatMarch31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020 |
| Equity 18,538.75 | 17,939.38 |

quity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
pport its business and maximise shareholder value holders of the Company. The Company manages its capital and makes




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited ’ . SR S e
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 39. Management's assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on Company's operations

COVID -19 pandemic and response thereon including fock down restrictions have impacted most of the industries. Consequent to the continuing
nationwide lock down till May 31, 2020, the Company’s operations were scaled down in compliance with applicable regulatory orders. Subsequently,
during the year after the lock down restrictions were lifted the Company’s operations have been scaled up in a phased manner taking into account
directives from various Government authorities. The impact on future operations would, to a large extent, depend on how the pandemic further
develops and it's resultant impact on the operations of the Company. The Company continues to monitor the situation and take appropriate action, as
considered necessary in due compliance with the applicable regulations.

The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's operations, financial performance and position as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2021 and has concluded that there is no impact which is required to be recognised in the financial statements. Accordingly,
no adjustments have been made to the financial statements.

Note 40

The Company has given waivers in respect of lease rental for various tenants during the year due to COVID -19 pandemic.

Accordingly, as per IND AS 116 the Company has accounted for the waivers prospectively from the effective date of the waivers, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the existing leases. Further, any subsequent waiver on the lease rental for the period post the reporting
date is currently not ascertainable and not considered for accounting as stated above.

Note 41. Social Security Code

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received Presidential
assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Fmployment has released
draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for
quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effectlve and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 42. Previous year figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

-As per our report of even date
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